
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN  

REGULAR MEETING 
Monday, October 11, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

Call to Order  Mayor Feather 

Determination of Quorum 

Moment of Silence 

Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Approval of Consent Agenda
A. Approval of the Minutes

1) Regular Meeting Minutes September 13, 2021
B. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
C. Financial Reports (Reports in Board packet)
D. 2022 Board of Aldermen Meeting Schedule and Town Hall Holiday Closing Schedule

3. Citizen Comments
(All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of minutes with other citizens.)

4. Guests and Presentations

5. Town Events
• Granite Fest - Saturday, October 16, 2021 3:00p.m. at Granite Civic Park

6. Town Manager Update (Report in Board packet)

Old Business 

7. Discussion Bike Park Lease Agreement

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and any subsequent Board direction.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 1



New Business 

8. Public Hearing    UDO Text Amendment Residential Fence Standards

Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness:
In voting to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Granite
Quarry Board of Aldermen does find this decision to be in the best interest of the public and to be
consistent in general with policies stated in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan.

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-17 to amend the text of the Unified
Development Ordinance for residential fence standards and approving the statement of consistency and
reasonableness as written.

9. Public Hearing  UDO and Code of Ordinance Text Amendment Driveway Standards

Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness:
In voting to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Granite
Quarry Board of Aldermen does find this decision to be in the best interest of the public and to be
consistent in general with policies stated in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan.

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-18 to amend the text of the Unified
Development Ordinance and Code of Ordinances for driveway standards and approving the statement
of consistency and reasonableness as written.

10. Board Comments

11. Mayor’s Notes Announcements and Date Reminders 
A. Wednesday October 13 5:00 p.m. 
B. Thursday October 14 6:00 p.m. 
C. Saturday October 16 3:00 p.m. 
D. Monday October 18 5:00 p.m. 
E. Monday October 18 5:30 p.m. 
F. Tuesday October 19 3:30 p.m. 
G. Thursday October 21 7:30 a.m. 
H. Wednesday  October 27 5:30 p.m. 

November 1 6:00 p.m. 
November 2 

I. Monday
J. Tuesday

Centralina Board of Delegates Meeting 
Community Appearance Commission  
Granite Fest 
Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 
Zoning Board of Adjustment  
Revitalization Team 
Rowan Chamber Power in Partnership 
Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO TAC 
Planning Board 
Election Day 

Adjourn 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 2



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
Agenda Item 1                            Approval of Agenda 

          
 
 

Summary: 
 

The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Regular 
Meeting agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Action Requested: 
 

Motion to adopt the October 11, 2021 Board of Aldermen 
Meeting Agenda (as presented / as amended). 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

Second By: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  
 
 

 

For: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

Against: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

 
 
In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 
 For              

 Against      
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 3



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
Agenda Item 2   Approval of Consent Agenda 

Summary: 
The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Consent 
Agenda. 

A. Approval of the Minutes
1) Regular Meeting Minutes September 13, 2021
B. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
C. Financial Reports (Reports in Board packet)
D. 2022 Board of Aldermen Meeting Schedule and Town Hall 

Holiday Schedule

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve the consent agenda (as presented / as 
amended).  

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 4



                                                                  
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, September 13, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 
 

 

Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, Alderman Kim 

Cress, Alderman Doug Shelton 
 

Staff: Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith, Town Attorney Chip Short, Finance Officer 

Shelly Shockley, Fire Chief/ Public Works Director Jason Hord, Police Chief Mark Cook, Town Planner 

Steve Blount 
 

Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Determination of Quorum: Mayor Feather determined there was a quorum present. 
 

Moment of Silence:  Mayor Feather led a moment of silence.   
 

Pledge of Allegiance:  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Preston Stephens of Troop 379. 
 

1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition of 

“ACTION” to item 4A. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

2. Approval of the Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes 

1) Regular Meeting Minutes August 9, 2021 

B. Departmental Reports 

C. Financial Reports  

D. Appointment of McKenzie Eller to Community Appearance Commission 

E. Appointment of Charisse Peeler to Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 

 

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Alderman Shelton 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0. 

 

3. Citizen Comments 

• Darrell Worley, 713 Foil Street – spoke against a “no solicitation” sign in Garland Place. 

 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 5



4. Guests and Presentations  

A. Presentation 

Teresa Cress, 717 Weldon Lane - presented a petition from Garland Place requesting a “No 

Solicitation” sign.  
 

B. Board Discussion / Action 

Mayor Feather asked Planner Blount to update the Board regarding sign regulations and whether 

the existing “No Solicitation” sign in Timber Run fit the guidelines. Planner Blount stated that in 

all likelihood, without seeing it, the sign was in violation. Mayor Feather questioned whether the 

proposed sign could be regulated. Planner Blount responded that if the sign was on public property, 

it could. 
 

Attorney Short stated the issue was how the rest of the town would be treated. He commented there 

were two major decisions to be made: one, did the Board want to go there in the first place and two, 

how would the Board enforce it? He stated use of “Slow Children at Play” signs had been 

discouraged before because it was viewed as the Town taking on the liability to enforce the signs. 

He suggested letting the ordinance be rewritten and then deciding about enforcement. 
 

Alderman Cress stated the desire for the sign began as a security measure. The petition was taken 

around to homes in the subdivision during the pandemic on a town-maintained road. He stated if it 

could be done in Timber Run it could be done in any neighborhood. Alderman Shelton stated his 

issue was putting up a sign gave the illusion that the town would enforce it. 
 

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to send the issue back to staff. Alderman Shelton 

seconded the motion. The motion failed with Alderman Shelton and Alderman Costantino in favor 

and Alderman Cress, Mayor Pro Tem Linker, and Mayor Feather opposed.  
 

ACTION: Alderman Shelton made a motion to allow the sign in this particular instance and have 

the Planner amend the sign ordinance to address the issue in the future. Alderman Cress seconded 

the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

5. Town Manager’s Update 

Manager Smith invited Chief Hord forward to introduce the newest Fire Lieutenant, Chad Moss. 

Lieutenant Moss is full-time on the “C” shift. 
 

Manager Smith reviewed highlights from items on his report in the agenda packet including COVID-

19 measures, onsite audit completion, and staff time on follow-ups. The Wall Street sink hole was 

treated as a budgeted item knowing that the Capital Streets Improvement was coming up for bid to 

create fiscal responsibility and not inflate the budget. The Lake Park wrap-up is going well; the tentative 

opening date is Wednesday, September 15th. 
 

Old Business     None    
 

New Business 

     

6. Public Hearing    UDO Text Amendment Subdivision Exceptions 

Planner Blount reviewed his memo on the proposed text amendment that was included in the agenda 

packet. 
 

Opened: Mayor Feather opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m. 
 

Comments of those in favor: None 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 6



Comments of those opposed: None 
 

Closed: Mayor Feather closed the public hearing at 7:53 p.m. 
 

Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness: 

In voting to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Granite 

Quarry Board of Aldermen does find this decision to be in the best interest of the public and to be 

consistent in general with policies stated in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-14 to amend the text of the 

Unified Development Ordinance by adding language for subdivision exceptions and approving the 

statement of consistency and reasonableness as written. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion. 

The motion passed 4-0. 
 

7. Public Hearing    UDO Text Amendment Historic District Overlay 

Planner Blount reviewed his memo on the proposed text amendment that was included in the agenda 

packet. 
 

Opened: Mayor Feather opened the public hearing at 7:55 p.m. 
 

Comments of those in favor: None 
 

Comments of those opposed: None 
 

Closed: Mayor Feather closed the public hearing at 7:56 p.m. 
 

Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness: 

In voting to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Granite 

Quarry Board of Aldermen does find this decision to be in the best interest of the public and to be 

consistent in general with policies stated in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-15 to amend the text of the 

Unified Development Ordinance by removing historic district overlay language, amending the zoning 

map, and approving the statement of consistency and reasonableness as written. Alderman Costantino 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

8. Public Hearing    Code of Ordinances Text Amendment Burial Sites 

Planner Blount reviewed his memo on the proposed text amendment that was included in the agenda 

packet. 
 

Opened: Mayor Feather opened the public hearing at 7:58 p.m. 
 

Comments of those in favor: None 
 

Comments of those opposed: None 
 

Closed: Mayor Feather closed the public hearing at 7:59 p.m. 

 

Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness: 

In voting to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Granite 

Quarry Board of Aldermen does find this decision to be in the best interest of the public and to be 

consistent in general with policies stated in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 7



ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve (Ordinance 2021-16 to amend the text of 

the Code of Ordinances by adding language concerning burials and approving the statement of 

consistency and reasonableness as written). Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 4-0. 
 

9. CPO 2016-0104    Waterline Extension Project Closeout 

During preparation of financials for the FY21 audit it was discovered that the 2016 Capital Project 

Ordinance for the Village at Granite waterline extension had never been closed.  Staff was able to pull 

all the pieces together to properly account for the record with the auditor.   
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to adopt the Capital Project Ordinance 2016-0104 

closeout ordinance as presented, closing out the 2016 Village at Granite waterline extension project. 

Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

10. Discussion / Direction   Census  

Staff requested Board discussion/direction about board members, a delegation of board members, or a 

board representative contacting legislators on the Town’s behalf to make them aware of the unique set 

of circumstances surrounding Granite Quarry’s population estimates and requesting their assistance 

with correcting Granite Quarry’s census population count. 
 

The Board discussed who should be in the delegation to contact legislators to lobby on the town’s 

behalf, and that those delegated should follow up sooner rather than later. 
 

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion (that the delegation of Mayor Feather and Alderman 

Shelton contact legislators to lobby on the town’s behalf). Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The 

motion passed 4-0. 
 

11. Non-Profit Funding Request  FD Auxiliary 

The Auxiliary has secured a $300 grant with Harbor Freight for FD engine tools.  It will match that 

grant with $300 of its own and asked the Board to match $300 as well.  The Board discussed the 

nonprofit funding policy and what the appropriate line item would be to fund the request. 
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to appropriate $250 out of the Board contingency 

line item. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

12. Budget Amendment   FY 21-22 #3 Granite Fest 

PERC acknowledged the Board’s desire for the return of Granite Fest and thus recognized sponsorships 

and vendor registrations to aid in the offset of costs. Budget Amendment #3 will allow for an increase 

in the Committees – PERC budget by $3,000 for Granite Fest 2021, and a “not to exceed” amount of 

$2,000 for remaining events in FY 21-22 on an as needed basis. 
 

ACTION: Alderman Cress made a motion to approve (Budget Amendment FY21-22 #3 to increase 

Parks Miscellaneous and Parks – Committees – PERC in an amount not to exceed $5,000 for Granite 

Fest 2021 and remaining events in FY 21-22). Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 4-0. 
 

13. Proclamations   

A. Constitution Week    September 17-23, 2021 

B. Fire Prevention Week    October 3-9, 2021 

C. Breast Cancer Awareness Month  October 

Mayor Feather acknowledged the proclamations for Constitution Week, Fire Prevention Week, and 

Breast Cancer Awareness Month. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 8



14. Discussion      Committee Membership Appointment Policy 

Mayor Feather stated he asked discussion of the Committee Membership Appointment Policy be added 

to the agenda because he had received phone calls that a committee did not do their job by not voting 

someone up or down. 
 

15. Board Comments - There were no Board comments. 
 

16. Mayor’s Notes  Announcements and Date Reminders  

A. Thursday September 16 7:30 a.m. Rowan Chamber Power in Partnership Zoom 

B. Saturday September 18 6:00 p.m. Faith FD Oyster Roast & Fish Fry 

C. Monday  September 20 5:00 p.m. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 

D. Monday  September 20 5:30 p.m. Zoning Board of Adjustment  

E. Tuesday September 21  3:30 p.m. Revitalization Team 

F. Wednesday  September 22  5:30 p.m. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO TAC (Virtual) 

G. Tuesday October 4 6:00 p.m. Planning Board  

H. Friday  October 8   FD Aux. Port-a-Pit 

I. Saturday October 9   FD Open House 

J. Saturday October 9   Civitan Fiddlers’ Convention 
 

17. Closed Session    Civitan Agreement 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to go into closed session pursuant to N.C. General 

Statutes Section 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating agents 

concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price and 

other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by purchase, 

option, exchange, or lease. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to return to open session. Alderman Costantino 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

Mayor Feather stated that in closed session the Board discussed the Civitan Agreement, budgeting and 

financing. 
 

ACTION: Alderman Shelton made a motion to continue the rate of $1,200 a year for the rest of this 

fiscal year and then pay out any remaining balance next fiscal year unless a different agreement is 

reached before July 1, 2022. Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

Mayor Feather stated that the Board wanted the Civitan Club to stay in the building and thought this 

was the fairest way to do that. 
 

Adjourn 
  

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to adjourn. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion. 

The meeting ended at 9:02 p.m. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 9



     
 

September Work 2021 Public Works Report 
 

• Normal Maintenance Duties Daily- (parks, cleaning, mowing, 
edging, service on equipment, limbs & sweeping) 

• PM check on generator  
• Sanitized town hall, playgrounds at parks, and restrooms 
• Nature trail maintenance weekly  
• Lake project in progress, 100% complete  
• Pier’s stained at Lake Park  
• Monthly FEMA construction meeting  
• Dead trees removed from Civic Park  
• Painted bleachers, tables, and rails at Civic Park  
• Changed timer to digital on softball field lights  
• Yearly PM on leaf vac completed and operational  
• Dump truck new front calipers and master cylinder 

 

 

2007 Ford Truck    Mileage – 61,457                    +254 miles 
1995 Ford Dump Truck   Mileage – 40,704         +7 miles     
2009 Ford Truck    Mileage – 84,309                    +915 miles 
2019 Ford Truck F350   Mileage – 11,535                          +466 miles  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 10



Town of Granite Quarry 
Fire Department 

 Established May 15th, 1950 
                                                                                   PO Box 351  
             www.granitequarrync.gov            Granite Quarry, NC        704/279-5596  

 Board Report October/2021 Chief Hord 
 

Emergency Calls for Service September 2021  
46 calls in district 

• 31 - EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs)  
• 6 - MVA 
• 4 - Fire Alarms 
• 4 - Service assignment  
• 1 - Gas Leak  

11 calls to Salisbury 
• 5 - Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route 
• 4 - Structure fires - Manpower 
• 2 - EMS 

7 calls to Rockwell Rural 
• 1 - Structure fire - Manpower 
• 4 - Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route 
• 1 - EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs) 
• 1 - MVA  

6 calls to Union  
• 4 - Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route 
• 1 - EMS 
• 1 - Structure fire - Manpower  

4 calls to South Salisbury 
• 2 - Structure fires - Manpower 
• 1 - Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route 
• 1 - MVA 

1 call to Rockwell City  
• 1 - EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  TOTAL – 75 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 11



ACTIVITIES  
• Daily activities include apparatus & equipment checks, training, station maintenance, 

pre-plan development, hose and hydrant maintenance, water points, emergency response, 
public education, inspections, and the assistance of other divisions within the Town of 
GQ.  

• Rigorous cleaning/decontamination, due to suggested COVID response multiple times 
daily. 

• Monthly training included E.M.T continuing education and Joint Training with Faith F.D.  
• Multiple days of ladder training, water point training, hose evolutions, extrication tool 

familiarization, and district familiarization. Weekly shift training/ officer’s choice. 
• Car Seat Check Station on Thursday from 1 p.m.to 4 p.m. – 4 seats installed/checked. 
• New turn out helmets, boots and hoods inventoried. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 12



 
Planning Department Monthly Report 

September 2021 
 
ZONING PERMITS 
(5 other) 

Date Address Permit Purpose 

9/7/2021 214 Sycamore St Residential zoning permit for storage bldg and 
concrete deck 

9/9/2021 Rowan and Main Residential revised site plan plat 
9/15/2021 310 Hill St Commercial zoning permit for antenna addition to 

existing tower 
9/20/2021 127 S Salisbury Ave Commercial sign permit 
9/20/2021 N Main St Commercial reviewed dot driveway permit 

 
Code Violations  
(1 new violation cited, 1 resolved) 

Date Address Issue 
9/22/2021 617 Pine Hill Dr code violation, limbs down in yard 

 
Planning and Zoning Enquiries   

Date Type Issue 
9/1/2021 Residential review census count data and develop presentation 
9/10/2021 Residential reviewed sidewalk problem and approved alternate 
9/13/2021 Commercial reviewed easement plat and reported discrepancies 
9/13/2021 Residential public workshop for bike/ped plan 
9/15/2021 Residential met with property owner on townhome development 
9/20/2021 Residential information on rezoning process 
9/21/2021 Residential attended webinar on census count challenge process 
9/23/2021 Residential discussed possible subdiv / recomb w/ Village at Granite 

 
Miscellaneous  

• 9/7/2021 Planning Board meeting – various items 
• 9/7/2021 Bike / Ped public input session 
• 9/13/2021 Board of Aldermen Meeting – attended / presentation 
• 9/20/2021 Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting – granted variance 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 13



 
Granite Quarry-Faith Joint Police Authority 

P.O. Box 351  143 North Salisbury Ave, Granite Quarry, NC 28072 
Office: (704)279-2952  Fax: (704)279-6648 

 

 
Police Department Report 

 
October 2021 

 
• Call volume report for the month of September 2021: 

o Date of Report: 10/04/2021 

o Total calls for service/activities –  465                                          

o Calls for service/activities Granite Quarry: 342            

o Calls for service/activities Faith:  111          

o Incident Reports- 8           

o Arrest Reports- 9                

o Crash Reports- 10                                                   

o Traffic Citations- 13                   

• See Attached for Total Calls for Service. 

• The following is the ending and average mileage for each vehicle by month: 
 

131 Chevy Impala- End- 72,569    
141 Ford Taurus- End- 80,605   
161 Ford Utility- End- 66,423 
171 Ford Utility - End- 45,207  
172 Ford Utility - End- 74,507 
173 Ford Utility - End- 37,391  
181 Ford F150 - End- 63,106  
191 Dodge Durango - End- 33,432 
201 Ford Utility-  End- 13,282 
211 Ford Utility- End- 4,947 
212 Ford Utility- End- 9,200 

 
• Other Information: 

o Average response time for July 2021 CFS is 2.45 minutes. 
o Drug Collection Box. July 2021: 29.67 pounds collected.   
o July CID Report. 1 Cases assigned; 4 Cases cleared; 11 follow-ups conducted; 82 open 

assigned cases. 
o Officers completed 46 hours of in-service or continuing education training in July. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 14



GQPD
Number of Events by Nature

CFS Sept 2021

Nature # Events

104C2 COMMERCIAL BURG (INTRUSI 7

104C3 RESIDENTAL BURG (INTRUSI 3

105C1 ANIMAL-CRUELTY 1

110C1 POSSIBLE B&E RESIDENTIAL 1

110D2 RESIDENTIAL B&E 1

111B1 PAST DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 3

111D1 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 1

113B2 OTHER NOISE COMPLAINT 2

113B3 NUISANCE COMPLAINT 4

113D1 DISTURBANCE / PHYSICAL 1

113D2 DISTURBANCE / VERBAL 4

114B1 PAST DOMESTIC 1

114C4 VERBAL FAMILY DOMESTIC 1

114D1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 2

114D2 VERBAL DOMESTIC 3

115D1 DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE 1

116D1 DRUGS (USE-POSSESSION) 1

116D2 DRUGS (SALE) 1

116O2 DRUGS - INFORMATION 1

118C1 FRAUD (PHONE/MAIL/ELEC) 1

119B1 PHONE THREAT 1

119C2 THREAT - JUST OCCURED 1

119D2 THREAT 2

121O2 MENTAL COMMITMENT 1

123B2 RUNAWAY 1

123D1 MISSING PERSON (AT RISK) 1

125B1 CHECK WELFARE - ROUTINE 2

125D1 CHECK WELFARE-URGENT 3

127D2 SUICIDE THREAT 2

Town of Granite Quarry Page 15



Nature # Events

129B2 SUSPICIOUS VEH (PAST) 1

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 4

129C2 WANTED PERSON 1

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 10

129C5 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE 2

130B1 LARCENY (ALREADY OCC) 1

130B2 VEHICLE LARCENY (PAST) 1

130C1 THEFT JUST OCCURED 2

130D1 LARCENY 3

132A1 ABANDONED VEHICLE 1

132B1 MINOR TRAFFIC VIOLATION 1

132B3 STALLED VEHICLE 1

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC VIOLATION 2

132C2 HAZARDOUS ROAD CONDITION 1

132O2 TRAFF COMP - INFORMATION 1

133D1 TRESPASSING 4

135B2 PAST SHOTS FIRED 1

135D1 ARMED SUBJECT 2

23C7 OVERDOSE OR POISON 1

77B1 TRAFFIC ACC - INJURY 1

77B3 TRAFFIC ACC - POSS INJURY 1

77D1 TRAFFIC ACC - INJURY 1

77D4 TRAF ACC - VEH VS PED/BIK 1

911 HANG UP 9

ASSIST EMS 2

ASSIST FIRE DEPT 1

ASSIST MOTORIST 2

BURGLARY ALARM 3

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 222

COMMUNITY PROGRAM 5

DELIVER MESSAGE 4

ESCORT FUNERAL OR OTHER 2

Town of Granite Quarry Page 16



479Total

Nature # Events

FOLLOWUP 16

GENERAL INFORMATION 8

K9 UTILIZATION 1

LAW CALL 1

MISDIAL 3

PARK CHECK 25

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 14

SEARCH WARRANT 1

SUBPOENA SERVICE 7

TRAFFIC CHECK 11

TRAFFIC CONTROL 2

TRAFFIC STOP 30

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 6

WARRANT SERVICE 6

Town of Granite Quarry Page 17



.

Budgeted Encumbered YTD

Revenues: 2,690,289 1,137,373 42%

 Total Revenues: 2,690,289$   1,137,373$   42%

Expenses:

Governing Body 54,422 $5,500 18,428 44%

Administration 568,053 $700 127,790 23%

Maintenance 371,377 $540 115,777 31%

Police Dept. 751,991 $0 218,652 29%

Fire Department 544,429 $2,815 136,074 26%

Streets 170,517 $0 54,297 32%

Sanitation 152,250 $0 34,773 23%

Parks & Recreation 77,250 $20,367 18,220 50%
 Total Expenses 2,690,289$   $29,922 724,012$   28%

64%

Finance Department

Please see the Budget Vs. Actual Report attached for specific line items

Department

As of September 30, 2021
Breakdown of Departments:

Expense to Revenue:

Page 1
Town of Granite Quarry Page 18



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget YTD Variance % Notes

989,710  713,558  (276,152)  72% 1
3,000  631  (2,369)  21%
6,000  2,208  (3,792)  37%

117,034  39,512  (77,522)  34%
846,600  236,575  (610,025)  28%

2,370  584  (1,786)  25%
76,722  38,226  (38,496)  50% 2
13,736  - (13,736) 0%

132,854  31,743  (101,111)  24%
4,020  1,005  (3,015)  25%

-  -  -  0% 3
500  1,229  729  246% 4

136,000  34,000  (102,000)  25%
100  80  (20) 80%

1,100  473  (627) 43%
169,632  27,555  (142,077)  16%

5,500  1,130  (4,370)  21%
3,050  4,150  1,100  136% 5

50,000  - (50,000) 0%
10,000  1,922  (8,078)  19% 6

2,500  1,120  (1,380)  45%
1,000  - (1,000) 0%

11,500  1,673  (9,827)  15%
107,361  - (107,361) 0% 7

2,690,289 1,137,373 (1,552,916)  42%

1 A majority of Ad Valorem Taxes come in the first few months of the fiscal year
2 First of two allocations
3 Combined "Permits" and "Subdivision & Zoning Fees" for better tracking/budgeting, original budget $4,000
4 Refund from NC Department of Insurance
5 Includes Vendor Registration Fees & Sponsorships for Granite Fest
6 See last page for breakdown of Interest on Investments
7 Original budget $57,795.00 + BA #1 (Parks & Rec Master Plan $17,750.00) & BA #2 (IDF Close-out $31,815.53)

01-3835-81 Surplus items Sold

01-3837-31 ABC Net Revenue-Co.

01-3991-99 Fund Balance Appropriated

Notes:

01-3613-41 Parks Miscellaneous

01-3713-33 Sal. Water/Sewer Reimbursement

01-3831-89 Interest on Investments

01-3834-41 Park Shelter Rentals (Maint)

01-3431-41 Police Authority Revenue_Faith

01-3431-45 Police Report Revenue

01-3431-89 Police Miscellaneous

01-3471-51 Environmental Fee Collection

01-3491-41 Subdivision & Zoning Fees

01-3322-31 Beer & Wine - State

01-3324-31 Utilities Franchise Tax

01-3330-84 County First Responders

01-3340-41 Permits

01-3413-89 Miscellaneous Revenue

01-3101-12 Taxes - Prior Years

01-3102-12 Vehicle Tax

01-3230-31 Local Option Sales Tax

01-3231-31 Solid Waste Disposal Tax

01-3316-32 Powell Pave & Patch Funds

Revenues:

Account
01-3100-12 Taxes - Budget Year

01-3100-17 Tax Penalties & Interest

Page 2
Town of Granite Quarry Page 19



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

12,828  -  -  12,828  0%

981  -  -  981  0%

50  - 41 9  83% 8

20,000  5,500  5,500 9,000  55% 9
700  -  -  700  0%

200  -  -  200  0%

12,600  - 10,863 1,737  86% 10

1,700  - 1,674 26  98% 11

350  - 350 - 100% 12
3,500  - - 3,500  0%

1,513  - - 1,513  0%

54,422  5,500  18,428  30,494  44%

Notes:
8 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
9 50% of Audit paid when Auditors do the field work, $5,500 (encumbered) will be paid upon completion
10 Includes $4,135 for NCLM dues and $5,338 for Rowan EDC dues paid annually 
11 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
12 Includes $100 for Fiddler's Convention and $250 for Granite Quarry Fire Dept Auxiliary donations

01-4110-45 Insurance & Bonds

01-4110-61 Grants - Nonprofit Grant Program

01-4110-63 Elections

01-4110-97 Board Contingency

01-4110-14 Insurance - Workers Comp

01-4110-18 Professional Services

01-4110-26 Office Expense

01-4110-31 Training & Schools

01-4110-40 Dues & Subscriptions

Governing Body:

Account
01-4110-02 Mayor/Aldermen Salary

01-4110-09 FICA Expense

Page 3
Town of Granite Quarry Page 20



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4120-00 Salaries - Regular 291,151  - 64,544 226,608  22%
01-4120-02 Salaries - Part-Time 14,040  - 7,485 6,555  53% 13
01-4120-03 Salaries - Longevity 1,000  - - 1,000  0%
01-4120-07 401K Expense 14,558  - 3,217 11,341  22%
01-4120-09 FICA Expense 23,424  - 5,387 18,037  23%
01-4120-10 Retirement Expense 33,159  - 7,323 25,836  22%
01-4120-11 Group Insurance 46,500  - 11,182 35,318  24%
01-4120-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 750  - 395 355  53% 14
01-4120-17 Insurance – HRA/Admin Cost 1,200  - 300 900  25%
01-4120-18 Professional Services 20,000  - 2,102 17,898  11%
01-4120-22 Banquet Expense 1,700  - - 1,700  0%
01-4120-26 Office Expense 10,000  500  447  9,053  9%
01-4120-29 Supplies & Equipment 200  -  -  200  0%
01-4120-31 Training & Schools 7,000  200  1,260  5,540  21%
01-4120-32 Telephone/Communications 3,500  - 558 2,942  16%
01-4120-33 Utilities 4,800  - 1,036 3,764  22%
01-4120-34 Printing 5,000  - 1,826 3,174  37%
01-4120-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 500  - - 500  0%
01-4120-37 Advertising 3,200  - 811 2,389  25%
01-4120-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,750  - 443 3,308  12%
01-4120-44 Contracted Services 14,550  - 5,964 8,586  41% 15
01-4120-45 Insurance & Bonds 5,150  - 5,091 59  99% 16
01-4120-62 Committees - CAC 500  - - 500  0%
01-4120-68 Tax Collection 9,600  - 7,728 1,872  80% 17
01-4120-71 Water Line - Principal 50,000  - - 50,000  0%
01-4120-72 Water Line - Interest 2,821  - 692 2,129  25%

568,053  700  127,790  439,563  23%

Notes:
13 Budget for planning positions split between FT and PT
14 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
15 Includes annual support for Southern Software paid once at the beginning of the fiscal year
16 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
17 Cost of Tax Collection proportionate to Ad Valorem Taxes in revenues (higher in first few months of FY)

Account
Administration:

Page 4
Town of Granite Quarry Page 21



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4190-00 Salaries - Regular 124,296  - 32,973 91,323  27%

01-4190-02 Salaries - Part-Time 35,500  - 10,444 25,057  29%

01-4190-03 Salaries - Longevity 750  - - 750  0%

01-4190-07 401K Expense 6,215  - 1,887 4,328  30%

01-4190-09 FICA Expense 12,282  - 3,685 8,597  30%

01-4190-10 Retirement Expense 14,193  - 4,294 9,899  30%

01-4190-11 Group Insurance 24,750  - 7,926 16,824  32%

01-4190-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 7,600  - 5,440 2,160  72% 18

01-4190-20 Motor Fuel 7,100  - 2,273 4,827  32%

01-4190-21 Uniforms 2,000  - 249 1,751  12%

01-4190-24 Maint & Repair - Bldgs/Grounds 12,000  - 372 11,628  3%

01-4190-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 3,500  - 2,990 510  85% 19
01-4190-29 Supplies & Equipment 10,000  - 2,479 7,521  25%

01-4190-31 Training & Schools 250  - - 250  0%

01-4190-32 Telephone/Communications 850  - 185 665  22%

01-4190-33 Utilities 3,500  - 736 2,764  21%

01-4190-34 Printing 25  - 5                   20  22%

01-4190-35 Maint & Repairs - Equipment 17,000  - 3,010 13,990  18%

01-4190-40 Dues & Subscriptions 150  - 38 113  25%

01-4190-44 Contracted Services 16,000  540 565               14,895  7%

01-4190-45 Insurance & Bonds 4,600  - 4,410 190  96% 20

01-4190-54 Cap Outlay - Vehicles 37,000  - - 37,000  0%

01-4190-96 Interfund Transfer 31,816  - 31,816 - 100% 21

$371,377 540  115,777  $255,059 31%

Notes:
18 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
19 Includes $1,201 in Dump Truck repairs
20 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
21 IDF Close-out

Account

Maintenance:

Page 5
Town of Granite Quarry Page 22



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4310-00 Salaries - Regular 433,768  - 115,683 318,085  27%

01-4310-02 Salaries - Part-Time 15,000  - 2,670 12,330  18%

01-4310-03 Salaries - Longevity 2,500  - - 2,500  0%

01-4310-07 401K Expense 21,688  - 5,751 15,937  27%

01-4310-09 FICA Expense 34,522  - 8,872 25,650  26%

01-4310-10 Retirement Expense 52,788  - 13,847 38,941  26%

01-4310-11 Group Insurance 86,625  - 25,590 61,035  30%

01-4310-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 10,700  - 8,069 2,631  75% 22

01-4310-20 Motor Fuel 19,000  - 5,941 13,059  31%

01-4310-21 Uniforms 3,000  - 665 2,335  22%

01-4310-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 6,000  - 1,087 4,913  18%

01-4310-26 Office Expense 1,500  - 97 1,403  6%

01-4310-29 Supplies & Equipment 8,000  - 1,539 6,461  19%

01-4310-31 Training & Schools 4,000  - 1,083 2,917  27%

01-4310-32 Telephone/Communications 8,000  - 1,832 6,168  23%

01-4310-33 Utilities 3,000  - 369 2,631  12%

01-4310-34 Printing 1,000  - 142 858  14%

01-4310-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 2,000  - 179 1,821  9%

01-4310-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,650  - 1,089 2,561  30%

01-4310-44 Contracted Services 23,250  - 12,689 10,561  55% 23
01-4310-45 Insurance & Bonds 12,000  - 11,459 541  95% 24

751,991  - 218,652 533,339  29%

Notes:
22 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
23 Includes Law Enforcement Attorney fees and equipment service fees paid once annually 
24 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year

Account

Police Department:

Page 6
Town of Granite Quarry Page 23



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4340-00 Salaries - Regular 131,849  - 33,115 98,734  25%

01-4340-02 Salaries - Part-Time 210,000  - 52,127 157,873  25%

01-4340-03 Salaries - Longevity 1,825  - - 1,825  0%

01-4340-07 401K Expense 6,592  - 1,613 4,979  24%

01-4340-09 FICA Expense 26,291  - 5,977 20,314  23%

01-4340-10 Retirement Expense 15,172  - 3,670 11,502  24%

01-4340-11 Group Insurance 30,400  - 7,708 22,692  25%

01-4340-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 11,500  - 8,357 3,143  73% 25

01-4340-20 Motor Fuel 5,000  - 1,173 3,827  23%

01-4340-21 Uniforms 3,000  - 733 2,267  24%

01-4340-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 7,500  - 1,425 6,075  19%

01-4340-26 Office Expense 150  - - 150  0%

01-4340-29 Supplies & Equipment 21,000  2,815  5,896  12,288  41%

01-4340-31 Training & Schools 2,000  - 216 1,784  11%

01-4340-32 Telephone/Communications 4,500  - 1,040 3,460  23%

01-4340-33 Utilities 6,100  - 1,373 4,727  23%

01-4340-34 Printing 325  - 87 238  27%

01-4340-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 2,500  - - 2,500  0%

01-4340-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,300  - 664 2,636  20%

01-4340-44 Contracted Services 10,000  - 1,537 8,463  15%

01-4340-45 Insurance & Bonds 9,425  - 9,361 64  99% 26

01-4340-55 Cap Outlay - Equipment 36,000  - - 36,000  0%

544,429  2,815  136,074  405,540  26%

Notes:
25 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year
26 Paid once annually at the beginning of the fiscal year

Fire Department:

Account

Page 7
Town of Granite Quarry Page 24



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4510-18 Professional Services 900  - 900 - 100% 27
01-4510-29 Supplies & Equipment 2,500  - - 2,500  0%

01-4510-39 Maint & Repair 7,400  - 1,000 6,400  14%

01-4510-58 Cap Outlay - Bldg/Infrastructure 65,000  - 41,400 23,600  64% 28
01-4510-71 Debt Service - Principal 50,000  - - 50,000  0%

01-4510-72 Debt Services - Interest 8,717  - - 8,717  0%

01-4511-33 Utilities - Street Lights 36,000  - 10,997 25,003  31%

170,517  - 54,297 116,220  32%

Notes:
27 Powell Bill maps paid for once annually
28 Includes Brinkley St. storm water improvements and sink hole repair on Wall St.

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-4710-44 Contracted Services 152,250  - 34,773 117,477  23%

152,250  - 34,773 117,477  23%

Budget Encum. YTD Variance % Notes

01-6130-18 Professional Services 17,750 17,500  250  - 100% 29
01-6130-24 Maint & Repair - Bldgs/Grounds 26,000 2,067  8,528  15,405  41%

01-6130-29 Supplies & Equipment 7,000  - 946 6,054  14%

01-6130-33 Utilities 16,500  - 3,271 13,229  20%

01-6130-44 Contracted Services 2,000  - - 2,000  0%

01-6130-62 Committees - PERC 8,000  800 5,225            1,975  75% 30

77,250  20,367  18,220  38,662  50%

Notes:
29 Parks and Rec Master Plan balance encumbered
30 Includes Granite Fest 2021 expenses

Account

Account

Account

Streets:

Sanitation:

Parks & Rec:

Page 8
Town of Granite Quarry Page 25



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of September 30, 2021

Acct# July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June Interest YTD Balance
Certificates of Deposits:
XX7779 418.18  432.13  432.13  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,282.44  250,431.38  
XX7151 357.43  Matured -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  357.43  Matured

775.61  432.13  432.13  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,639.87$    250,431.38$   

Money Market Accounts:
XX9011 87.42  76.67  99.82  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  263.91  1,241,189.07  
XX1186 5.48  5.15  5.14  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  15.77  62,596.56  
XX5349 - 28.92 39.46  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  68.38  480,026.73  

92.90  110.74  144.42  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 348.06$        1,783,812.36$   

NC Capital Management Trust:
XX4319 1.20  0.43  0.42  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2.05 50,964.40  

1.20  0.43  0.42  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2.05$   50,964.40$   

Interest in General Fund YTD 1,921.60$  

Interest in ARPA Fund YTD (Restricted) 68.38$  

Total Interst Earned YTD 1,989.98$  

Total Invested Balance 2,085,208$  

Cash on Hand (As of Bank Reconcilation 9/30/21) 522,862$     

Total Available Funds * 2,608,070$  
* Includes Restricted ARPA Funds

Interest on Investments by Month
FY 2021-2022

Page 9
Town of Granite Quarry Page 26



Quarterly Reports As of 9/30/2021

REVENUES

Amended 
Project 

Authorization
Total To Date

21/22
Projected

04-3613-26 Federal Emergency Management Agency Grant 576,286$           137,145$           439,141$           
04-3613-36 NC Division of Emergency Management Grant 192,095             45,715                146,380             

Total Revenues 768,381             182,860             585,521             

04-3981-96 Transfer from General Fund -                      -                      -                      
Total Other Financing Sources -                     -                     -                     

768,381             182,860             585,521             

04-6130-18 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Engineer or Architect Fees 166,000             134,284             31,716                

Total Personnel 166,000             134,284             31,716               

04-6130-69 CAP OUTLAY - BLDG, STRUCT, OTHER
Construction Cost 547,619$           457,758$           89,861$             

Contingency (10%) 54,762                -$                    54,762$             
Total Capital Outlay 602,381             457,758             144,623             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 768,381$          592,042$          176,339$          

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES -$                    (409,182)$          409,182$           

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina
Capital Project Ordinance # 2020-04

FEMA Grant - Granite Lake Repairs
Inception 3/2/2020

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Town of Granite Quarry Page 27



Quarterly Reports As of 9/30/2021

Project 
Authorization

Amended
Authorization

Actual

05-3714-36 Rural Economic Development Grant 242,918$           208,350$           208,350$           
05-3714-37 Rowan County Match 40,487                -                          -$                        

Total Revenues 283,405             208,350             208,350             

05-3981-96 Transfer from General Fund (GQ Match) 40,487                72,303                72,303                
Total Other Financing Sources 40,487               72,303               72,303               

323,892             280,653             280,653             

05-7140-18 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 66,660                49,544                
Engineer or Architect Fees 49,044                

Legal Fees 500                     
Total Professional Services 66,660               49,544               49,544               

05-7140-49 ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 20,000                20,000                20,000                
Total Personnel 20,000               20,000               20,000               

05-7140-58 CAP OUTLAY - BLDG, STRUCT, OTHER 237,232             211,108             211,108             
Total Capital Outlay 237,232             211,108             211,108             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 323,892             280,653             280,653             

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES -$                    -$                    -$                    

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

REVENUES

Town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina
Capital Project Ordinance # 2020-05

Granite Industrial Park Sewer Line Extension
Inception 3/2/2020

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Closed 08/09/2021

Town of Granite Quarry Page 28



Quarterly Reports As of 9/30/2021

Project 
Authorization

Total To Date
Projected by
Completion

07-3301-23 CSLRF Funds (ARPA Funds) 959,917             479,958             479,958             
Total Revenues 959,917             479,958             479,958             

959,917             479,958             479,958             

07-4110-61 CSLRF Funds (Grant Related Expenditures) 959,917             -                          959,917             
Total Personnel 959,917             -                          959,917             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 959,917             -                          959,917             

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES -$                    479,958$           (479,958)$          

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES

Town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina
Capital Project Ordinance # 2021-13
American Rescue Plan Act Fund

Inception 8/9/2021

REVENUES

Town of Granite Quarry Page 29



 
 

2022 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting Schedule 
(Regular Meetings are scheduled for the second Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m.) 

 
 January 10   Monday  
 February 14   Monday 
 March 14   Monday 
 April 11   Monday 
 May 9    Monday 
 June 13    Monday 
 July 11    Monday 
 August 8   Monday 
 September 12  Monday 
 October 10   Monday 
 November 14  Monday 
 December 12  Monday 

 
 

 
2022 Holiday Schedule 

 
Holiday Observance Date Day of the Week 
New Year’s Day December 31, 2021 Friday 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day January 17, 2022 Monday 
Good Friday April 15 Friday 
Memorial Day May 30 Monday 
Independence Day July 4 Monday 
Labor Day September 5 Monday 
Veterans Day  November 11 Friday 
Thanksgiving November 24 & 25 Thursday & Friday 
Christmas December 23, 26 & 27 Friday, Monday & 

Tuesday 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 30



Town of Granite Quarry Page 31



 
Town of Granite Quarry 

Town Manager’s Report 

October 2021 
 

 
 

1. Training 
A. Strategic Planning in Local Government.  One of the best professional training & skills update in 

quite a while.  Practical focus on applying tried & tested plus a new tool in helping boards and 
staff with our respective roles in strategic planning and execution. 

B. Better Planning & Economic Development, Part 4.  This session focused on redeveloping 
suburbs and commercial corridors.  Very good and very applicable content.  I will send a link out 
when it becomes available, and encouraging a group viewing with Revitalization and staff. 

 
2. Development 

A. Stoneglen.  PresPro is the new developer for project; advises development loan is wrapping up 
now so ground should start being turned by early to mid-October. 

B. Towns at Granite Quarry.  The Townhomes at Main & Rowan are pre-selling well; developer 
expects first move-ins to start before end of month. 

C. Village at Granite 
• Developer has a new contractor working to complete remaining Phase 1 issues. 
• Phase 2 engineering review is back underway pending Faith sewer review / any changes. 
• Phase 3 (originally designated for multi-family and commercial) has now been submitted for 

all multi-family development. 
• A potential Phase 4 is being discussed that would extend current Phase 2 development area. 

 
3. Projects 

A. FEMA grant Lake Park repairs 
• Grass carp in lake; goose repellent spread to help protect seeded grass. 
• Contractor finishing up punchlist items. 
• Target completion date for construction part of the project October 15th.  After that it’s just: 

- Processing final invoices and FEMA reimbursement requests; 
- Closeout with FEMA, HUB, and finally Town Grant Project Ordinance; 
- Neighboring “water rights” line easement once as-builts’ legal description is provided. 

B. Lake Park 
• Increased maintenance this year in general still getting overwhelmingly positive feedback. 
• Electrical service upgrade for events and Christmas décor is underway.  The new 200-amp 

panel is installed and just waiting for Duke Energy to run the underground to it. 

C. Civic Park 
• Two dead trees removed; stumps will be removed after Granite Fest. 
• Cleaned off the mulch & debris pile in corner of overflow lot. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 32



D. NCDOT Bike & Ped planning grant.  Turnout was relatively low for the community input session 
held last month.  No findings or further developments passed back along to us yet from that. 

E. Parks & Rec Master Plan.  Met with Benesch to review and finalize initial draft notes.  Discussed 
impact of Civic Park vs Lake Park feedback results and the timeline of Bike & Ped input process 
for comparisons. 

 
4. Committees 

A. Community Appearance Commission 
• Continued Yard of the Month, awarding 1207 Edgewater Ct and 208 N Cleo Ave for Sept. 
• Currently conducting Halloween decoration contest; planning for Christmas contest. 

B. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee.  Focused on finalizing details of Granite Fest. 

C. Revitalization Team.  Continued its discussion on organizational models.  Staff pulled info from 
past studies’ suggestions that are still relevant today; reaching out to other groups for input. 

 
5. Follow ups 

A. No Solicitation Signs.  Our planner exhaustively reviewed this issue from last month and reports: 
“In response to citizens requesting installation of a “No Solicitation” sign at the entrance to 
their neighborhood, the Board asked staff to consider modifications to the Town’s Sign 
Ordinance to resolve issues currently preventing these signs. Staff’s initial investigation of 
this issue provided convincing case law evidence that “No Solicitation” signs were not 
enforceable and even peddler’s license requirements were questionable. Further, allowing 
one type of private sign or one specific mandate or instruction to be placed in the public 
right-of-way and/or mounted on a municipal pole or standard would set a precedent that 
could be used in the future to force allowance of other less desirable signs. Staff 
recommends, therefore, that the Town not revise its sign ordinance as suggested.” 

B. Audit.  Completed Management Discussion & Analysis with auditor and proofed initial draft. 

C. Granite Quarry Athletic Club lease agreement.  Followed up on insurance and legal questions 
in preparation for the upcoming discussion. 

D. Chamandy Drive easement.  Filed and recorded.  The 2018 survey was referenced but not 
recorded with the deed.  Manager noted some errors in the legal description of the original 2018 
draft; drafted and confirmed corrections with surveyor; and forwarded to County and Town 
attorney for review.  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 33



      GQAC Lease Agreement 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
Agenda Item 7  

Summary: 
Granite Quarry Athletic Club’s (GQAC) insurance policy for its 
use of the Town’s Faith Road property expired 9/17/21.  Per the 
Lease Agreement, staff spoke with the GQAC President and 
followed up with the attached notice.   

Staff was asked to place this item on the agenda for Board 
discussion. GQAC President has since advised the manager that 
GQAC recommends cancelling the Agreement for now.  Manager 
will work with the town attorney and GQAC President between 
now and the meeting to update a summary of potential best 
options to move forward.

Attachments: 

• Correspondence
• GQAC Lease Agreement and Insurance

Action Requested: 
Discussion and any subsequent Board direction. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 34



Town of Granite Quarry Page 35



Town of Granite Quarry Page 36



Town of Granite Quarry Page 37



Town of Granite Quarry Page 38



Town of Granite Quarry Page 39



Town of Granite Quarry Page 40



Town of Granite Quarry Page 41



Town of Granite Quarry Page 42



Town of Granite Quarry Page 43



Town of Granite Quarry Page 44



Town of Granite Quarry Page 45



Town of Granite Quarry Page 46



Town of Granite Quarry Page 47



Town of Granite Quarry Page 48



Town of Granite Quarry Page 49



Town of Granite Quarry Page 50



Town of Granite Quarry Page 51



Town of Granite Quarry Page 52



Town of Granite Quarry Page 53



Town of Granite Quarry Page 54



Town of Granite Quarry Page 55



Town of Granite Quarry Page 56



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
Agenda Item 8   Residential Fence Standards 

Summary: 
The attached text amendments to the Unified Development 
Ordinance have been drafted by the planning staff and 
recommended by the Planning Board for approval by the Board of 
Aldermen. 

Attachments: 
A. Draft ordinance with highlighted additions and

strikethroughs.

Action Requested: 
Motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-17 to amend the text of the 
Unified Development Ordinance for residential fence 
standards and approving the statement of consistency and 
reasonableness as written. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 57



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TEXT OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY’S 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE 
QUARRY: 

Section 1. Text related to residential fence standards will be revised as follows: 

New text shown highlighted in yellow 
Deleted text shown with strikethrough 

8.4.2 
Residential Fence Standards. 

A. Installation of Fences.
1. A zoning permit is not required for all fences. ; however, the The property

owner shall submit a sketch plan along with the permit application showing the fence 
location, heights, building materials, setbacks from property lines, etc.  the The following 
standards shall apply to all fences. 

Table 8.4: Fence Height Restrictions 

Front Yard Fence Max. Height Side Yard Fence Max. Height Rear yard fence Max. Height 

3' 6' 6' 

2. Requests may be made to the Zoning Administrator for fences of more than the
maximum height limit due to site constraints such as topography for a
determination if the fence meets the intent of the ordinance.

3. Fence installation must meet building setbacks when property is adjacent to a
public street.

a. Maximum 3-foot-tall decorative fences may be installed at property
owner’s side of sidewalk (if sidewalks do not exist, setback shall be
measured to where a sidewalk might be added in the future) on front and
side yards adjacent to public streets.
b. 6-foot-tall fences are allowed facing the front yard when attached to the
front building corners and run parallel to the front face of the building.
They may not protrude further into the front yard than the face of the
building.

4. Fences must be installed with the finished side out, facing the perimeter of the
lot.

a. Fences must be set back from property lines an amount adequate (min.
3’) to provide for maintenance without trespassing on neighboring
property.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 58

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_APXAUNDEOR_CH8LABU_S8.4FEWABEST


5. Corner lot installations must not obstruct vision as stated in guidelines of
Chapter 3, section 3.4(D).

B. Prohibited fences.
1. Chain link and/or metal-slat in front yard.
Fences and walls constructed of chain link or metal slats shall be prohibited
within the front yard, and/or side yard of corner lots in all residential zoning
districts.
2. Barbed wire and above ground electrified fences.
Except as needed for Agriculture uses, major utilities, government facilities, and
other public safety uses, barbed wire fences and above ground electrified fences
are prohibited in all zoning districts. Underground electric fences designed for
control of domestic animals are permitted but must be setback from sidewalks (if
sidewalks do not exist, setback shall be measured from where a sidewalk might be
added in the future) by at least 10 feet and signs must be provided spaced no more
than 50’ apart indicating dogs are controlled by an underground electric fence.
3. Debris, junk, rolled plastic, sheet metal, plywood or other waste materials.
Fences or walls made of debris, junk, rolled plastic, sheet metal, plywood or
waste materials are prohibited in all zoning districts, unless such materials have
been recycled and reprocessed into building materials marketed to the general
public and resemble new building materials.
In no instance shall fencing around stormwater retention or detention facilities as
required by this Ordinance be prevented by this section.
4. Other materials that might not normally be used for fencing that are
determined objectionable by the Zoning Administrator

C. Maintenance of Fences.
All fences and walls shall be maintained in good repair and in a safe and attractive
condition, including but not limited to replacement of missing, decayed or broken
structural and decorative elements. All fences and walls shall receive regular structural
maintenance to prevent and address sagging and weathering of surfaces visible from the
public right-of-way. Any deteriorated, damaged or decayed fence materials shall be
promptly repaired, and any fence or wall post or section that leans more than 20 degrees
from vertical shall be promptly repaired to correct that condition. Grass, shrubs, vines,
etc. growing along both sides of the fence line must be maintained by the property owner.
Fences must be set back from property lines an amount adequate (min. 3’) to provide for
maintenance without trespassing on neighboring property.

D. Exceptions
In no instance shall fencing around stormwater retention or detention facilities as 
required by this Ordinance be prevented by this section. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 59

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_APXAUNDEOR_CH3ZODI_S3.4DIRE


Section 2. All ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

Section 3. This ordinance is effective on the 11th day of October 2021. 

___________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk  Carl M. Short, Town Attorney 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 60



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
Agenda Item 9          Driveway Standards 

Summary: 
Option 1 of the attached text amendments to the Unified 
Development Ordinance and Code of Ordinances was drafted by 
the planning staff and recommended by the Planning Board for 
approval by the Board of Aldermen. 

Option 2 of the attached text amendments to the Unified 
Development Ordinance and Code of Ordinances was drafted by 
the planning staff as an alternative. The difference is in treatment 
of corner lots wanting driveway on both roads. 

Attachments: 
A. Option 1 Draft ordinance with highlighted additions and

strikethroughs.
B. Option 2 Draft ordinance with highlighted additions and

strikethroughs.

Action Requested: 
Motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-18 to amend the text of the 
Unified Development Ordinance and Code of Ordinances for 
driveway standards and approving the statement of 
consistency and reasonableness as written. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 61



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-18 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TEXT OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY’S 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE 
QUARRY: 

Section 1. Text related to driveway standards will be revised as follows: 

New text shown highlighted in yellow 
Deleted text shown with strikethrough 

Appendix A-Unified Development Ordinance 
Chapter 9 Parking 
Section 9.6 Driveways 

Sec. 9.6. - Driveways. 

These driveway requirements do not apply to single-family detached and two-family attached 
(duplex) residential uses. See Chapter 22, Article II for requirements for all new and existing 
driveways. 

Appendix A-Unified Development Ordinance 
Chapter 10 Infrastructure 
Section 10.1 Street Standards 

Sub Section 10.1.9.4 

Driveways. 

The number of street and driveway connections permitted serving a single property frontage 
or commercial development shall be the minimum deemed necessary by the Town or NCDOT 
for reasonable service to the property without undue impairment of safety, convenience, and 
utility of the roadway. Normally, not more than two (2) driveways shall be permitted for any 
single property frontage. The arrangement of driveways should be related to adjacent 
driveways and nearby street intersections and meet the following criteria: 

1. Commercial drives leading to a site in the Commercial or Industrial districts must include
vertical curb and gutter as stated in 10.1.5.

2. Residential drives shall be located a minimum of 10 feet from the point of tangency of curb
radii of street intersections.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 62



3. Driveways serving streets with traffic volumes in excess of 300 ADT or accessing 
thoroughfares shall be located a minimum of 250 feet from the point of tangency of the 
radius of curvature of the intersecting street. 

4. Where two (2) driveways are proposed along a single property frontage to facilitate 
operations, the minimum distance between the centerlines of the drives shall be 200 feet. 

5. The minimum distance between the centerlines of driveways into shopping centers or 
facilities generating in excess of 300 ADT shall be a minimum of 400 feet. 

6. Full access driveways open to signalization should be 1000 feet apart. Driveways which 
access thoroughfares and serve more than 1500 ADT shall provide deceleration lanes in 
approach to the driveway. 

See Chapter 22, Article II for requirements for all new and existing driveways. 

Chapter 22- Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places 
Article II-Driveways 
 
Sec. 22-25. - Construction specifications. 
The construction of driveways shall be according to town specifications as follows: 

A. General 
a. It shall be unlawful for any person to break out or cut any street curb for the 

purpose of constructing a driveway entrance to any property or to construct any 
driveway across the grass planting strip or sidewalk where curbs do not exist 
without first obtaining a permit from the Town’s Planning Department. A separate 
permit will not be required where driveway curb cuts are built as a part of a new 
or reconstructed street. 

b. Plans for curb cuts for new driveways including approach aprons, sidewalks, 
driveways and parking areas will be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director who will also inspect the final installation. 

c. No driveway shall be permitted to be closer than 5 feet to an adjacent property 
line. No driveway for a corner lot shall be permitted within 15 feet of the 
intersecting right-of-way lines.  

d. No driveway shall be permitted so to interfere with a sidewalk intersection, traffic 
signal, street light standard or support, fire hydrant or water meter. 

e. Driveways shall be constructed so as to prevent stormwater from flowing down 
from the street onto the driveway. This shall be accomplished by sloping the 
approach apron (entrance) or driveway itself up from its connection to the road 
surface, maintaining a valley at the road connection point.  

f. Drainage ditches along roads will be piped under the driveway with a concrete 
pipe of adequate size to carry the water flow as determined by the Town’s 
Maintenance Director but not less than 15 inches in diameter. Pipe should be 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 63



installed as per NCDOT standards and approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director. 

g. Driveways connecting to State maintained roads shall be installed per NCDOT 
driveway standards. 

h. Street pavement, curb and gutters, and sidewalks disturbed during the installation 
of driveways shall be repaired to like-new condition by the contractor or property 
owner. 

i. Driveway approach apron shall be constructed of poured concrete at least 6 inches 
thick on a stone base and at least 24 inches wide or wide enough to connect to 
new or existing sidewalks. When connected to an existing 4-inch thick sidewalk, 
that sidewalk shall be replaced with a new 6-inch thick, 3,000 PSI concrete 
sidewalk at least 5 feet wide (or wider if needed to match existing sidewalks). 

j. When a driveway is relocated on a property, the unused portion of the existing 
curb cut will be replaced by the property owner. When an existing curb cut or 
driveway entrance is altered or repaired, it shall be made to conform to all 
dimensional requirements of this section. 

k. Maintenance responsibility for all driveways including associated curb cuts, 
sidewalks and driveways will rest with the property owner. After notification, if 
not repaired within 60 days the Town will undertake needed repairs and bill the 
property owner for this work. If not paid, the Town will use all legal means to 
collect the outstanding bill including filling a lien on the property. 

B. Residential Driveways 
a. Driveways shall be no less than 12 feet wide and no greater than 20 feet wide.  
b. Residential properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on one 

street. 
c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 

i. 4-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  
ii. Pressure compacted 4-inch thick asphalt over a 6” compacted stone base 

or, 
iii. Brick pavers over sand on a compacted soil base or, 
iv. Pervious tiles installed per manufacturer’s directions or, 
v. Decorative rock laid over compacted stone base or,  

vi. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director  

d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 
instructions. Settable materials such as concrete shall be installed using removable 
forms (excavated dirt edge shall not be used as the form) and after forms are 
removed, dirt backfill shall be used to bring the adjacent lawn area up to the 
driveway top elevation. Non-settable materials shall be installed with an edging 
material (landscape timbers, metal edging, poured concrete edging, etc.) to 
prevent future erosion of the paving material. 

C. Commercial Driveways 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 64



a. Commercial driveways shall be no less than 25 feet wide and no greater than 35 
feet wide. Wider driveways may be approved during the site plan review process.  

b. Commercial properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on each 
street. Corner lots may have 2 driveway entrances on each street. 

c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 
i. 4-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  

ii. Pressure compacted 4-inch thick asphalt over a 6” compacted stone base 
or, 

iii. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director  

iv. Maintenance Director may require thicker pavement if high truck traffic 
volume is expected. 

d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 
instructions.  

D. Industrial Driveways 
a. Driveways shall be no less than 35 feet wide and no greater than 50 feet wide. 

Wider driveways may be approved during the site plan review process.  
b. Industrial properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on one 

street.  
c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 

i. 6-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  
ii. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 

Director 
iii.  Maintenance Director may require thicker pavement if high truck traffic 

volume is expected. 
d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 

instructions.  
E. Variances 

a. Dimensional requirements of this section can be altered by the issuance of a 
variance by the Town’s Board of Adjustment when their strict enforcement would 
cause undue hardship on the property owner or make the intended use of the 
property impossible. Variances may not be issued merely as a matter of cost 
savings. 

(Code 2003, § 15-51) 

Sec. 22-26. - Permit required 
It shall be unlawful for any person to break out any street curb for the purpose of constructing a driveway 
entrance, or to construct any driveway across the grass plot or sidewalk, without first obtaining a written 
permit from the public works department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-52) 
 
Sec. 22-27. - Supervision of work. 
Any and all work performed under the provisions of this article shall be done under the supervision of the 
public works department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-53) 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 65



 
Sec. 22-28. - Paving generally. 
All driveway entrances constructed or reconstructed upon the street rights-of-way of the town shall be paved 
in the manner described in this article. 
(Code 2003, § 15-54) 
 
Sec. 22-29. - Proximity to intersections, hydrants, etc. 
No driveway entrance shall be permitted to intersect the radius of any street corner or be so located that it 
interferes with intersection sidewalks (or no closer than 25 feet to the intersection of right-of-way line, 
whichever is greater), traffic signals, lamp standards, fire hydrants or other public improvements unless 
specific approval is obtained from the public works department and necessary adjustments to public 
improvements or installations are accomplished without cost to the town, and in accordance with section 22-
32(g). 
(Code 2003, § 15-55) 
 
Sec. 22-30. - Minimum size of serviced area. 
The area to which a driveway provides access shall be sufficiently large to store vehicles using the driveway 
completely off the right-of-way and shall be of sufficient size to allow the functions related thereto to be 
carried out completely on the private property. 
(Code 2003, § 15-56) 
 
Sec. 22-31. - Side clearance. 
All portions of the driveway including the returns shall be between the property lines of the property served 
and shall not encroach on adjoining properties. 
(Code 2003, § 15-57; Ord. of 8-7-2006) 
 
Sec. 22-32. - Number, width of openings. 
(a) Residential generally. The width of residential driveway entrances shall be limited to 20 feet each as 
measured along the curbline with not more than two such entrances to the same property. When two 
entrances are constructed to serve the same residence, there shall be a minimum distance of 25 feet of curb 
allowed to remain between the driveway entrances measured along the curbline. 
(b) Duplex (two-family). The width of a driveway entrance shall be limited to 20 feet each as measured 
along the curbline when two entrances are made to the same property, provided there shall be a minimum 
distance of 25 feet of curbline allowed to remain between the driveways. The width of a single driveway 
entrance to serve a duplex shall be limited to 24 feet. There shall be no more than two entrances to the same 
property. 
(c) Multifamily. When driveway entrances are constructed to serve apartment houses, such entrances may be 
24 feet in width measured at the curbline with not more than two such entrances to the same property from 
the same street. When two driveway entrances are constructed, there shall be at least 25 feet between 
driveway entrances measured at the curbline. 
(d) Joint driveways. The width of a joint driveway, as may be authorized by the zoning department, serving 
two adjacent pieces of property shall be limited to 24 feet along the curbline, provided no other means of 
driveway access is reasonably available and the permit for such driveway is signed by the then owner of the 
adjacent property. There shall be no more than one joint driveway for each two adjacent pieces of general 
residential property and no more than two joint driveways for each two adjacent pieces of duplex or 
multifamily residential property. 
(e) Business. Driveway entrances and exits, either or both, constructed to serve business property shall not 
exceed 35 feet in width and not more than two such curb openings shall be permitted from the same street to 
serve any business or combined group of businesses such as shopping centers. When two openings are 
constructed, there shall be a minimum distance of five feet of curb allowed to remain between the driveway 
entrances. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 66

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-32NUWIOP
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-32NUWIOP


(f) Industrial. Curb openings made to provide entrances or exits to industrial plants may be 50 feet in width 
with not more than one such entrance to the same property; except, that the zoning department may approve, 
without the concurrence of the board of aldermen, a second entrance when it deems such is in the public 
interest to facilitate ingress and egress to the property. When two or more such industrial driveway entrances 
are constructed, there shall be a minimum of 50 feet between such entrances as measured at the curbline. 
(g) Corner lots. Property having frontage on two intersecting streets within 100 feet of the intersection of 
such streets shall have access only from the minor or less intensively used street except as may be 
authorized under section 22-43, and in accordance with section 22-29. 
(Code 2003, § 15-58) 
Editor's note— Refer to the Unified Development Ordinance, contained in Appendix A to this Code, for 
standards regarding number and width of openings. 
 
Sec. 22-33. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Permit required; limitation. 
Existing driveway approaches shall not be relocated, altered or reconstructed without a permit approving 
such relocation, alteration or reconstruction. Such driveway approaches when so relocated, altered or 
reconstructed shall be subject to the limitations set forth in sections 22-33 through 22-36. 
(Code 2003, § 15-59) 
 
Sec. 22-34. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Replacement of curbs. 
When the use of any driveway approach is changed making any portion or all of any driveway approach 
unnecessary in the opinion of the zoning department, the owner of the abutting property shall, at his own 
expense, replace all necessary curbs, gutters and sidewalks within 60 days after written notice from the 
zoning officer. 
(Code 2003, § 15-60) 
 
Sec. 22-35. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Reconstruction by abutting 
property owner. 
When an existing building or structure is served by a driveway approach (not conforming to the provisions 
of this article) which is demolished, repaired or altered, the owner of the abutting property shall, at his own 
expense, reconstruct the driveway approach so as to conform to the provisions of sections 22-33 through 22-
36. 
(Code 2003, § 15-61) 
 
Sec. 22-36. - Driveway approaches; conformance to town standards. 
All work done in the construction of driveway approaches shall conform to town standards for concrete 
sidewalk and driveway approaches as established in this chapter or by the zoning department. The 
maintenance department will inspect all such work. 
(Code 2003, § 15-62) 
 
Sec. 22-37. - Thickness of pavements. 
The thickness of pavement shall not be less than six inches including a top surface of not less than one inch 
of asphaltic concrete and the stone base. 
(Code 2003, § 15-63) 
Sec. 22-38. - Replacement of existing sidewalks. 
When any driveway entrance is constructed or reconstructed, any existing four-inch sidewalk shall be 
replaced with concrete specifications of 3,000 PSI or of not less than six inches in thickness where the 
driveway crosses the sidewalk. The pedestrian walk shall be indicated by false cracks or lines in the 
pavement. The newly constructed section of sidewalk shall be at an elevation or grade approved by the 
maintenance department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-64) 
 
Sec. 22-39. - Materials for construction of residential driveways. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 67

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-43VA
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-29PRINHYET
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-33REALDRAPERRELI
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-33REALDRAPERRELI
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST


Paving materials used shall be of cement with specifications of 3,000 PSI or asphaltic concrete with a 
thickness of at least six inches. 
(Code 2003, § 15-65) 

Sec. 22-40. - Property owner's responsibility for maintenance and repairs. 
Responsibility for maintenance and repairs to new and existing driveway entrances or exits shall rest with 
the property owner. Upon receipt of a notice to repair damaged pavement, the property owner shall make the 
necessary repairs within 60 days in accordance with the requirements set forth in this article. If the required 
repairs and/or maintenance are not completed within the time specified, the maintenance department will 
complete the necessary repairs and/or maintenance and the owner will be responsible for reimbursing the 
town. Failure to do so within the specified time will result in a lien being placed upon the property. 
(Code 2003, § 15-66) 

Sec. 22-41. - Driveways from state highway streets. 
Where the property is to be served by a driveway opening into a state highway street, a permit as required 
by the state highway commission manual on driveway entrance regulations shall be first submitted to the 
planning department for its review and approval. The requirements of this article or those of the manual on 
driveway entrance regulations, whichever is greater, shall be the minimum standards for development. 
(Code 2003, § 15-67) 

Sec. 22-42. - Responsibility for damages; use of barricades, lights. 
The property owner shall be responsible for removing all debris and surplus materials upon completion of 
the work and shall maintain the premises in a safe manner, providing adequate barricades and lights at his 
own expense to protect the safety of the public using adjacent street or sidewalks and shall hold the town 
free and harmless from all damages for any liability incurred. 
(Code 2003, § 15-68) 

Sec. 22-43. - Variances. 
The zoning board of adjustment may grant variance from the standards of this article. 
(Code 2003, § 15-69) 

Sections 22-26 through 22-43 shall be reserved. 

Section 2. All ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of any such 

conflict. Section 3. This ordinance is effective on the 11th day of October 2021. 

___________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk  Carl M. Short, Town Attorney 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 68



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-18 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TEXT OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY’S 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE 
QUARRY: 

Section 1. Text related to driveway standards will be revised as follows: 

New text shown highlighted in yellow 
Deleted text shown with strikethrough 

Appendix A-Unified Development Ordinance 
Chapter 9 Parking 
Section 9.6 Driveways 

Sec. 9.6. - Driveways. 

These driveway requirements do not apply to single-family detached and two-family attached 
(duplex) residential uses. See Chapter 22, Article II for requirements for all new and existing 
driveways. 

Appendix A-Unified Development Ordinance 
Chapter 10 Infrastructure 
Section 10.1 Street Standards 

Sub Section 10.1.9.4 

Driveways. 

The number of street and driveway connections permitted serving a single property frontage 
or commercial development shall be the minimum deemed necessary by the Town or NCDOT 
for reasonable service to the property without undue impairment of safety, convenience, and 
utility of the roadway. Normally, not more than two (2) driveways shall be permitted for any 
single property frontage. The arrangement of driveways should be related to adjacent 
driveways and nearby street intersections and meet the following criteria: 

1. Commercial drives leading to a site in the Commercial or Industrial districts must include
vertical curb and gutter as stated in 10.1.5.

2. Residential drives shall be located a minimum of 10 feet from the point of tangency of curb
radii of street intersections.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 69



3. Driveways serving streets with traffic volumes in excess of 300 ADT or accessing 
thoroughfares shall be located a minimum of 250 feet from the point of tangency of the 
radius of curvature of the intersecting street. 

4. Where two (2) driveways are proposed along a single property frontage to facilitate 
operations, the minimum distance between the centerlines of the drives shall be 200 feet. 

5. The minimum distance between the centerlines of driveways into shopping centers or 
facilities generating in excess of 300 ADT shall be a minimum of 400 feet. 

6. Full access driveways open to signalization should be 1000 feet apart. Driveways which 
access thoroughfares and serve more than 1500 ADT shall provide deceleration lanes in 
approach to the driveway. 

See Chapter 22, Article II for requirements for all new and existing driveways. 

Chapter 22- Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places 
Article II-Driveways 
 
Sec. 22-25. - Construction specifications. 
The construction of driveways shall be according to town specifications as follows: 

A. General 
a. It shall be unlawful for any person to break out or cut any street curb for the 

purpose of constructing a driveway entrance to any property or to construct any 
driveway across the grass planting strip or sidewalk where curbs do not exist 
without first obtaining a permit from the Town’s Planning Department. A separate 
permit will not be required where driveway curb cuts are built as a part of a new 
or reconstructed street. 

b. Plans for curb cuts for new driveways including approach aprons, sidewalks, 
driveways and parking areas will be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director who will also inspect the final installation. 

c. No driveway shall be permitted to be closer than 5 feet to an adjacent property 
line. No driveway for a corner lot shall be permitted within 15 feet of the 
intersecting right-of-way lines.  

d. No driveway shall be permitted so to interfere with a sidewalk intersection, traffic 
signal, street light standard or support, fire hydrant or water meter. 

e. Driveways shall be constructed so as to prevent stormwater from flowing down 
from the street onto the driveway. This shall be accomplished by sloping the 
approach apron (entrance) or driveway itself up from its connection to the road 
surface, maintaining a valley at the road connection point.  

f. Drainage ditches along roads will be piped under the driveway with a concrete 
pipe of adequate size to carry the water flow as determined by the Town’s 
Maintenance Director but not less than 15 inches in diameter. Pipe should be 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 70



installed as per NCDOT standards and approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director. 

g. Driveways connecting to State maintained roads shall be installed per NCDOT 
driveway standards. 

h. Street pavement, curb and gutters, and sidewalks disturbed during the installation 
of driveways shall be repaired to like-new condition by the contractor or property 
owner. 

i. Driveway approach apron shall be constructed of poured concrete at least 6 inches 
thick on a stone base and at least 24 inches wide or wide enough to connect to 
new or existing sidewalks. When connected to an existing 4-inch thick sidewalk, 
that sidewalk shall be replaced with a new 6-inch thick, 3,000 PSI concrete 
sidewalk at least 5 feet wide (or wider if needed to match existing sidewalks). 

j. When a driveway is relocated on a property, the unused portion of the existing 
curb cut will be replaced by the property owner. When an existing curb cut or 
driveway entrance is altered or repaired, it shall be made to conform to all 
dimensional requirements of this section. 

k. Maintenance responsibility for all driveways including associated curb cuts, 
sidewalks and driveways will rest with the property owner. After notification, if 
not repaired within 60 days the Town will undertake needed repairs and bill the 
property owner for this work. If not paid, the Town will use all legal means to 
collect the outstanding bill including filling a lien on the property. 

B. Residential Driveways 
a. Driveways shall be no less than 12 feet wide and no greater than 20 feet wide.  
b. Residential properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on one 

street. An additional driveway may be allowed on the second street for 
corner lots if allowed per Section 22-25 B.e. below. 

c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 
i. 4-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  

ii. Pressure compacted 4-inch thick asphalt over a 6” compacted stone base 
or, 

iii. Brick pavers over sand on a compacted soil base or, 
iv. Pervious tiles installed per manufacturer’s directions or, 
v. Decorative rock laid over compacted stone base or,  

vi. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director  

d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 
instructions. Settable materials such as concrete shall be installed using removable 
forms (excavated dirt edge shall not be used as the form) and after forms are 
removed, dirt backfill shall be used to bring the adjacent lawn area up to the 
driveway top elevation. Non-settable materials shall be installed with an edging 
material (landscape timbers, metal edging, poured concrete edging, etc.) to 
prevent future erosion of the paving material. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 71



e. For safety purposes, driveways for corner lots shall access the less 
traveled of the two intersecting roads.  

i. This requirement may be waived at the discretion of the Zoning 
Administrator if: 

1. existing development along the more traveled road makes 
the addition of another driveway a negligible impact, 

2. the additional driveway access onto the more traveled 
road would have minimal safety impact,  

3. the access onto the less traveled road would create unsafe 
conditions at the intersection,  

4. the difference in obvious traffic movements of the two 
roads is negligible,  

5. or, the physical dimensions of the corner lot makes using 
the lesser traveled road an unreasonable impediment to 
development on the lot.    

 
C. Commercial Driveways 

a. Commercial driveways shall be no less than 25 feet wide and no greater than 35 
feet wide. Wider driveways may be approved during the site plan review process.  

b. Commercial properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on each 
street. Corner lots may have 2 driveway entrances on each street. 

c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 
i. 4-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  

ii. Pressure compacted 4-inch thick asphalt over a 6” compacted stone base 
or, 

iii. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 
Director  

iv. Maintenance Director may require thicker pavement if high truck traffic 
volume is expected. 

d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 
instructions.  

D. Industrial Driveways 
a. Driveways shall be no less than 35 feet wide and no greater than 50 feet wide. 

Wider driveways may be approved during the site plan review process.  
b. Industrial properties shall have no more than two driveway entrances on one 

street.  
c. Driveway material shall be a minimum of: 

i. 6-inch thick 3,000 psi poured concrete over a 4” compacted stone base or,  
ii. Other paving materials as might be approved by the Town’s Maintenance 

Director 
iii.  Maintenance Director may require thicker pavement if high truck traffic 

volume is expected. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 72



d. Driveway shall be installed per industry standards and manufacturer’s 
instructions.  

E. Variances 
a. Dimensional requirements of this section can be altered by the issuance of a 

variance by the Town’s Board of Adjustment when their strict enforcement would 
cause undue hardship on the property owner or make the intended use of the 
property impossible. Variances may not be issued merely as a matter of cost 
savings. 

(Code 2003, § 15-51) 

Sec. 22-26. - Permit required 
It shall be unlawful for any person to break out any street curb for the purpose of constructing a driveway 
entrance, or to construct any driveway across the grass plot or sidewalk, without first obtaining a written 
permit from the public works department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-52) 
 
Sec. 22-27. - Supervision of work. 
Any and all work performed under the provisions of this article shall be done under the supervision of the 
public works department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-53) 
 
Sec. 22-28. - Paving generally. 
All driveway entrances constructed or reconstructed upon the street rights-of-way of the town shall be paved 
in the manner described in this article. 
(Code 2003, § 15-54) 
 
Sec. 22-29. - Proximity to intersections, hydrants, etc. 
No driveway entrance shall be permitted to intersect the radius of any street corner or be so located that it 
interferes with intersection sidewalks (or no closer than 25 feet to the intersection of right-of-way line, 
whichever is greater), traffic signals, lamp standards, fire hydrants or other public improvements unless 
specific approval is obtained from the public works department and necessary adjustments to public 
improvements or installations are accomplished without cost to the town, and in accordance with section 22-
32(g). 
(Code 2003, § 15-55) 
 
Sec. 22-30. - Minimum size of serviced area. 
The area to which a driveway provides access shall be sufficiently large to store vehicles using the driveway 
completely off the right-of-way and shall be of sufficient size to allow the functions related thereto to be 
carried out completely on the private property. 
(Code 2003, § 15-56) 
 
Sec. 22-31. - Side clearance. 
All portions of the driveway including the returns shall be between the property lines of the property served 
and shall not encroach on adjoining properties. 
(Code 2003, § 15-57; Ord. of 8-7-2006) 
 
Sec. 22-32. - Number, width of openings. 
(a) Residential generally. The width of residential driveway entrances shall be limited to 20 feet each as 
measured along the curbline with not more than two such entrances to the same property. When two 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 73

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-32NUWIOP
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-32NUWIOP


entrances are constructed to serve the same residence, there shall be a minimum distance of 25 feet of curb 
allowed to remain between the driveway entrances measured along the curbline. 
(b) Duplex (two-family). The width of a driveway entrance shall be limited to 20 feet each as measured 
along the curbline when two entrances are made to the same property, provided there shall be a minimum 
distance of 25 feet of curbline allowed to remain between the driveways. The width of a single driveway 
entrance to serve a duplex shall be limited to 24 feet. There shall be no more than two entrances to the same 
property. 
(c) Multifamily. When driveway entrances are constructed to serve apartment houses, such entrances may be 
24 feet in width measured at the curbline with not more than two such entrances to the same property from 
the same street. When two driveway entrances are constructed, there shall be at least 25 feet between 
driveway entrances measured at the curbline. 
(d) Joint driveways. The width of a joint driveway, as may be authorized by the zoning department, serving 
two adjacent pieces of property shall be limited to 24 feet along the curbline, provided no other means of 
driveway access is reasonably available and the permit for such driveway is signed by the then owner of the 
adjacent property. There shall be no more than one joint driveway for each two adjacent pieces of general 
residential property and no more than two joint driveways for each two adjacent pieces of duplex or 
multifamily residential property. 
(e) Business. Driveway entrances and exits, either or both, constructed to serve business property shall not 
exceed 35 feet in width and not more than two such curb openings shall be permitted from the same street to 
serve any business or combined group of businesses such as shopping centers. When two openings are 
constructed, there shall be a minimum distance of five feet of curb allowed to remain between the driveway 
entrances. 
(f) Industrial. Curb openings made to provide entrances or exits to industrial plants may be 50 feet in width 
with not more than one such entrance to the same property; except, that the zoning department may approve, 
without the concurrence of the board of aldermen, a second entrance when it deems such is in the public 
interest to facilitate ingress and egress to the property. When two or more such industrial driveway entrances 
are constructed, there shall be a minimum of 50 feet between such entrances as measured at the curbline. 
(g) Corner lots. Property having frontage on two intersecting streets within 100 feet of the intersection of 
such streets shall have access only from the minor or less intensively used street except as may be 
authorized under section 22-43, and in accordance with section 22-29. 
(Code 2003, § 15-58) 
Editor's note— Refer to the Unified Development Ordinance, contained in Appendix A to this Code, for 
standards regarding number and width of openings. 
 
Sec. 22-33. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Permit required; limitation. 
Existing driveway approaches shall not be relocated, altered or reconstructed without a permit approving 
such relocation, alteration or reconstruction. Such driveway approaches when so relocated, altered or 
reconstructed shall be subject to the limitations set forth in sections 22-33 through 22-36. 
(Code 2003, § 15-59) 
 
Sec. 22-34. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Replacement of curbs. 
When the use of any driveway approach is changed making any portion or all of any driveway approach 
unnecessary in the opinion of the zoning department, the owner of the abutting property shall, at his own 
expense, replace all necessary curbs, gutters and sidewalks within 60 days after written notice from the 
zoning officer. 
(Code 2003, § 15-60) 
 
Sec. 22-35. - Relocation, alteration or driveway approaches—Reconstruction by abutting 
property owner. 
When an existing building or structure is served by a driveway approach (not conforming to the provisions 
of this article) which is demolished, repaired or altered, the owner of the abutting property shall, at his own 
expense, reconstruct the driveway approach so as to conform to the provisions of sections 22-33 through 22-
36. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 74

https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-43VA
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-29PRINHYET
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-33REALDRAPERRELI
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-33REALDRAPERRELI
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST
https://library.municode.com/nc/granite_quarry/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH22STSIOTPUPL_ARTIIDR_S22-36DRAPCOTOST


(Code 2003, § 15-61) 
 
Sec. 22-36. - Driveway approaches; conformance to town standards. 
All work done in the construction of driveway approaches shall conform to town standards for concrete 
sidewalk and driveway approaches as established in this chapter or by the zoning department. The 
maintenance department will inspect all such work. 
(Code 2003, § 15-62) 
 
Sec. 22-37. - Thickness of pavements. 
The thickness of pavement shall not be less than six inches including a top surface of not less than one inch 
of asphaltic concrete and the stone base. 
(Code 2003, § 15-63) 
Sec. 22-38. - Replacement of existing sidewalks. 
When any driveway entrance is constructed or reconstructed, any existing four-inch sidewalk shall be 
replaced with concrete specifications of 3,000 PSI or of not less than six inches in thickness where the 
driveway crosses the sidewalk. The pedestrian walk shall be indicated by false cracks or lines in the 
pavement. The newly constructed section of sidewalk shall be at an elevation or grade approved by the 
maintenance department. 
(Code 2003, § 15-64) 
 
Sec. 22-39. - Materials for construction of residential driveways. 
Paving materials used shall be of cement with specifications of 3,000 PSI or asphaltic concrete with a 
thickness of at least six inches. 
(Code 2003, § 15-65) 
 
Sec. 22-40. - Property owner's responsibility for maintenance and repairs. 
Responsibility for maintenance and repairs to new and existing driveway entrances or exits shall rest with 
the property owner. Upon receipt of a notice to repair damaged pavement, the property owner shall make the 
necessary repairs within 60 days in accordance with the requirements set forth in this article. If the required 
repairs and/or maintenance are not completed within the time specified, the maintenance department will 
complete the necessary repairs and/or maintenance and the owner will be responsible for reimbursing the 
town. Failure to do so within the specified time will result in a lien being placed upon the property. 
(Code 2003, § 15-66) 
 
Sec. 22-41. - Driveways from state highway streets. 
Where the property is to be served by a driveway opening into a state highway street, a permit as required 
by the state highway commission manual on driveway entrance regulations shall be first submitted to the 
planning department for its review and approval. The requirements of this article or those of the manual on 
driveway entrance regulations, whichever is greater, shall be the minimum standards for development. 
(Code 2003, § 15-67) 
 
Sec. 22-42. - Responsibility for damages; use of barricades, lights. 
The property owner shall be responsible for removing all debris and surplus materials upon completion of 
the work and shall maintain the premises in a safe manner, providing adequate barricades and lights at his 
own expense to protect the safety of the public using adjacent street or sidewalks and shall hold the town 
free and harmless from all damages for any liability incurred. 
(Code 2003, § 15-68) 
 
Sec. 22-43. - Variances. 
The zoning board of adjustment may grant variance from the standards of this article. 
(Code 2003, § 15-69) 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 75



Sections 22-26 through 22-43 shall be reserved. 

Section 2. All ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of any such 

conflict. Section 3. This ordinance is effective on the 11th day of October 2021. 

___________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk  Carl M. Short, Town Attorney 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 76



October 2021 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Planning Board 6pm 

FD Aux Port-a-Pit 
   Fiddler’s 

Convention 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

Business After Hours 5pm 
BoA Regular Mtg. 7pm 

Centralina Board of 
Delegates Mtng 5pm CAC 6pm 

Granite 
Fest 3pm 
Concert 
Begins 7pm 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

P.E.R.C. 5pm 
ZBA 5:30pm 

Revitalization 3:30pm 

Power in 
Partnership 
Breakfast 7:30am 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

MPO TAC 5:30pm 
 31 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 77



November 2021 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

Planning Board 6pm 
Election Day 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

Business After Hours 5pm 
BoA Regular Mtg. 7pm 

Centralina Executive 
Board Mtng 5pm 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

P.E.R.C. 5pm 
ZBA 5:30pm 

Revitalization 3:30pm 
MPO TAC 5:30pm 
 

Power in 
Partnership 
Breakfast 7:30am 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
Thanksgiving 
Office Closed 

Office Closed 

28 29 30 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 78


	October 11, 2021 Board of Aldermen Meeting Agenda
	1. Approval of Agenda
	2. Approval of Consent Agenda
	A. September 13, 2021 DRAFT Minutes
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Financial Reports
	D. Board Meeting Schedule and Town Hall Holiday Closing Schedule

	5. Town Events
	6. Town Manager Report
	7. Bike Park Lease
	8. Residential Fences
	9. Driveway Standards
	October 2021 Calendar
	November 2021 Calendar

	Back: 


